Interpersonal counselling for adolescent depression delivered by youth mental health workers without core professional training: the ICALM feasibility RCT

Jon Wilson,^{1,2*} Viktoria Cestaro,³ Eirini Charami-Roupa,¹ Timothy Clarke,^{1,2} Aoife Dunne,¹ Brioney Gee,^{1,2} Sharon Jarrett,⁴ Thando Katangwe-Chigamba,⁵ Andrew Laphan,¹ Susie McIvor,⁶ Richard Meiser-Stedman,⁷ Jamie Murdoch,⁸ Thomas Rhodes,¹ Carys Seeley,⁵ Lee Shepstone,² David Turner² and Paul Wilkinson⁹

¹Research and Development, Norfolk and Suffolk NHS Foundation Trust, Norwich, UK
²Norwich Medical School, University of East Anglia, Norwich, UK
³Paediatric Psychology, Addenbrookes Hospital, Cambridge, UK
⁴Public Health, Suffolk County Council, Suffolk, UK
⁵Norwich Clinical Trials Unit, University of East Anglia, Norwich, UK
⁶Children and Young People's Services, Suffolk County Council, Suffolk, UK
⁷Department of Clinical Psychology and Psychological Therapies, Norwich Medical School, University of East Anglia, Norfolk, UK
⁸School of Life Course and Population Sciences, King's College London, London, UK
⁹School of Clinical Medicine, University of Cambridge, Cambridge, UK

*Corresponding author jon.wilson@nsft.nhs.uk

Published December 2024 DOI: 10.3310/GTRV6410

Plain language summary

Interpersonal counselling for adolescent depression delivered by youth mental health workers without core professional training: the ICALM feasibility RCT

Health and Social Care Delivery Research 2024; Vol. 12: No. 48 DOI: 10.3310/GTRV6410

NIHR Journals Library www.journalslibrary.nihr.ac.uk

Plain language summary

Why was the study needed?

Mild depression is common in young people and, if not treated, can lead to major depression. Evidence shows that offering young people with mild depression a talking therapy called *interpersonal counselling* could reduce distress. However, most young people with mild depression consult family services, where staff do not have training in interpersonal counselling.

What were we trying to find out?

We wanted to find out if it would be possible to carry out a big study to test interpersonal counselling for young people with mild depression, which can be delivered by non-mental health professionals following a 2-day training workshop.

What did we do?

We invited young people with mild depression to take part in the study. We provided training in interpersonal counselling to staff from 13 different services. Individuals were selected at random to either continue their usual care or trial interpersonal counselling. The aim was to recruit 60 young people to make the study valid; however, we were only able to recruit 16. We collected information using questionnaires, interviews and session recordings.

What did we find out?

Most participants found interpersonal counselling helpful. We found evidence that it might lead to better quality of life and reduced need for health care over time. Due to COVID-19, staff shortages, staff concerns that participants may not receive interpersonal counselling and participants' changing needs, we were not able to recruit enough participants to fully answer our questions, meaning we cannot rely on the findings of the study. This study did not support a future study of interpersonal counselling in the current settings. However, we have included what we learnt from our challenges, which might help researchers plan similar studies in future.

Health and Social Care Delivery Research

ISSN 2755-0079 (Online)

A list of Journals Library editors can be found on the NIHR Journals Library website

Health and Social Care Delivery Research (HSDR) was launched in 2013 and is indexed by Europe PMC, DOAJ, INAHTA, Ulrichsweb[™] (ProQuest LLC, Ann Arbor, MI, USA), NCBI Bookshelf, Scopus and MEDLINE.

This journal is a member of and subscribes to the principles of the Committee on Publication Ethics (COPE) (www.publicationethics.org/).

Editorial contact: journals.library@nihr.ac.uk

This journal was previously published as *Health Services and Delivery Research* (Volumes 1–9); ISSN 2050-4349 (print), ISSN 2050-4357 (online)

The full HSDR archive is freely available to view online at www.journalslibrary.nihr.ac.uk/hsdr.

Criteria for inclusion in the Health and Social Care Delivery Research journal

Manuscripts are published in *Health and Social Care Delivery Research* (HSDR) if (1) they have resulted from work for the HSDR programme, and (2) they are of a sufficiently high scientific quality as assessed by the reviewers and editors.

HSDR programme

The HSDR programme funds research to produce evidence to impact on the quality, accessibility and organisation of health and social care services. This includes evaluations of how the NHS and social care might improve delivery of services.

For more information about the HSDR programme please visit the website at https://www.nihr.ac.uk/explore-nihr/funding-programmes/health-and-social-care-delivery-research.htm

This article

The research reported in this issue of the journal was funded by the HSDR programme or one of its preceding programmes as award number 17/112/16. The contractual start date was in October 2019. The draft manuscript began editorial review in November 2022 and was accepted for publication in June 2023. The authors have been wholly responsible for all data collection, analysis and interpretation, and for writing up their work. The HSDR editors and production house have tried to ensure the accuracy of the authors' manuscript and would like to thank the reviewers for their constructive comments on the draft document. However, they do not accept liability for damages or losses arising from material published in this article.

This article presents independent research funded by the National Institute for Health and Care Research (NIHR). The views and opinions expressed by authors in this publication are those of the authors and do not necessarily reflect those of the NHS, the NIHR, the HSDR programme or the Department of Health and Social Care. If there are verbatim quotations included in this publication the views and opinions expressed by the interviewees are those of the interviewees and do not necessarily reflect those of the NHS, these of the authors, those of the NHS, the NIHR, the HSDR programme or the Department of Health and Social Care.

This article was published based on current knowledge at the time and date of publication. NIHR is committed to being inclusive and will continually monitor best practice and guidance in relation to terminology and language to ensure that we remain relevant to our stakeholders.

Copyright © 2024 Wilson *et al.* This work was produced by Wilson *et al.* under the terms of a commissioning contract issued by the Secretary of State for Health and Social Care. This is an Open Access publication distributed under the terms of the Creative Commons Attribution CC BY 4.0 licence, which permits unrestricted use, distribution, reproduction and adaptation in any medium and for any purpose provided that it is properly attributed. See: https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/4.0/. For attribution the title, original author(s), the publication source – NIHR Journals Library, and the DOI of the publication must be cited.

Published by the NIHR Journals Library (www.journalslibrary.nihr.ac.uk), produced by Newgen Digitalworks Pvt Ltd, Chennai, India (www.newgen.co).